City of Portland

Memo

To:
City of Portland Planning Board

From:
Danielle P. West-Chuhta, Associate Corporation Counsel

Date:
January 5, 2010
Re:
Oak Street Discontinuance 

I have been asked to provide the Board with an analysis of Maine law regarding discontinuances and to specifically address to what extent a public easement (that usually remains after a road is discontinued) can be limited.

Title 23 M.R.S. § 3026 lays out the process for discontinuing roads.  This section provides, in part, as follows:

A municipality may terminate in whole or in part any interests held by it for highway purposes.  A municipality may discontinue a town way or public easement after the municipal officers have given best practicable notice to all abutting property owners and the municipal planning board or office and have filed an order of discontinuance with the municipal clerk that specifies the location of the way, the names of the abutting property owners and the amount of damages, if any, determined by the municipal officers to be paid to each abutter.

Upon approval of the discontinuance order of the legislative body, and unless otherwise stated in the order, a public easement shall, in the case of town ways, be retained and all remaining interests of the municipality shall pass to the abutting property owners to the center of the way.  For purposes of this section the words “public easement” shall include, without limitation, an easement for public utility facilities necessary to provide service.
23 M.R.S. § 3026(1).

As a result of the process outlined in the aforementioned section, the City’s maintenance obligation is terminated and a public easement
 remains (including a utility easement), unless the City Council Order authorizing the discontinuance specifically rejects retention of such an easement.  
It is my understanding that the applicant would like the portion of Oak Street to be discontinued and no public easement retained.  The City, however, would at least like to retain a pedestrian public easement (as opposed to vehicular) over the area in question.  It is my opinion that such a limitation on use could be accomplished within the confines of section 3026 as long as appropriate limiting language was included in the City Council’s discontinuance Order.
  

� Under Maine law a public easement is defined as “an easement held by a municipality for purposes of public access to land or water not otherwise connected to a public way, and includes all rights enjoyed by the public with respect to private ways created by statute prior to the effective date of this Act.  Private ways created pursuant to sections 3001 and 3004 prior to the effective date of this Act are public easements.”  23 M.R.S. §3021(2).   





� The City Council order could read as follows: 





ORDERED, that, pursuant to 23 M.R.S.A. § 3026, having given best practicable notice to all abutting land owners and to the City of Portland Planning Office, a portion of Oak Street, as described on Attachment 1, be and hereby is discontinued as a city street or town way, the City reserving a public utility easement to include, but not be limited to, sanitary, stormwater, gas lines, electrical and water communications, as described in Attachment 2.  





BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that a public easement for pedestrians only is retained in the portion of Oak Street described on Attachment 1; and





BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, no damages are to be paid in connection with this Order to Discontinue. 











PAGE  
2

